
 

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

30-105-04EXCEPTION TO SF 30
APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84

STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)
Prescribed by GSA
FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

Amendment 0005 is issued to for the follow ing reasons:

1. To revise specifications 
2. To replace section 09 90 00, P064, Post office in its entirety (provided by a separate attachment)
3. To provide responses to the pre-proposal inquires (PPIs) 

See continuation page

1. CONTRACT ID CODE PAGE OF  PAGES

J 1 8

16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)

16C. DATE SIGNED

BY 15-Apr-2015

16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA15C. DATE SIGNED15B. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR

(Signature of Contracting Officer)(Signature of person authorized to sign)

8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR  (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code) X N62470-15-R-5006

X 9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)
12-Mar-2015

10B. DATED  (SEE ITEM 13)

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

X The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offer  is extended, X is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of the following methods: 

(a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted;

or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE 
RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN  

REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, 
provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.
IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE
 CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying 
office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor is not,   is required to sign this document and return copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter
 where feasible.)

10A. MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO.

0005

2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 5. PROJECT NO.(If applicable)

6. ISSUED BY

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

15-Apr-2015

CODE

COMMANDER NAVFAC ATLANTIC
6506 HAMPTON BLVD
NORFOLK VA 23508-1278

N62470 7. ADMINISTERED BY  (If other than item 6)

4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.

CODE

See Item 6

FACILITY CODECODE

EMAIL:TEL:



N62470-15-R-5006 
0005 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 

SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
        AMENDMENT 0005 
 
N62470-15-R-5006 
 
Amendment 0005 is issued to for the following reasons: 
 

1. To revise specifications  
2. To replace section 09 90 00, P064, Post office in its entirety (provided by a separate attachment) 
3. To provide responses to the pre-proposal inquires (PPIs)  

 
 
ALL OUTSTANDING PPIs ARE ANSWERED IN THIS AMENDMENT. THE GOVERNMENT DOES 
NOT INTEND TO ANSWER ANY ADDITIONAL PPIs NOR POST ANY OTHER AMENDMENTS.  
 
AMENDMENT 0005 IS THE FINAL AMENDMENT.  
 
 
SPECIFICATIONS PART A 
P330 CLDJ Entry Control Point 
P064 CLDJ Post Office 
 
SECTION 01 35 40.00 20 Environmental Management  
 

1.9.1 Instructor Qualifications 
 

Add the following sentence to the end of this paragraph: 

“The firm or individual shall have experience on at least five (5) similar projects.” 

 
P330 Amended Specifications 
 
SPECIFICATIONS PART B 
P330 CLDJ ENTRY CONTROL POINT 
 
SECTION 03 30 00 Cast-In-Place Concrete  

Delete the last sentence of paragraph 1.6.5.1: “Evidence of extraordinary proven experience may be considered by 
the Contracting Officer as sufficient to act as the Quality Manager.” 

 

P064 Amended Specifications: 

SPECIFICATION PART C 
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P064 CLDJ POST OFFICE 
 

SECTION 03 30 00 Cast-In-Place Concrete  

Delete the last sentence of paragraph 1.6.5.1: “Evidence of extraordinary proven experience may be considered by 
the Contracting Officer as sufficient to act as the Quality Manager.” 

 

SECTION 09 90 00 Paints and Coatings 

Delete the entire specification section 09 90 00 Paints and Coatings. 

Replace with attached specification section 09 90 00 Paints and Coatings. 

 

SECTION 09 97 13.00 40 Steel Coatings  

Delete the entire specification section 09 97 13.00 40 Steel Coatings. 

 

SECTION 09 97 13.26 Coating of Steel Waterfront Structures  

Delete the entire specification section 09 97 13.26 Coating of Steel Waterfront Structures. 

 

PRE-RPOPOSAL INQUIRIES: 
 

115. Inquiry:   Please confirm this solicitation is a negotiated procurement utilizing procedures in accordance with 
FAR 36.2 as stated on page 10 of 42? 
 
Response:   Correct.  
 

116. Inquiry:   If your reference FAR 36.2 is correct then please confirm this is actually a “design-bid-build” 
requirement?   
 
Response:  Correct, this is not  a design-build project. This is a design-bid-build requirement.  
 

117. Inquiry:      Please confirm our assumption that the drawings and specifications used as the bid documents are 
correct and do not need to be certified by an A&E firm as being true and correct for construction? 
 
Response:    The design documents were prepared by NAVFAC Atlantic for this design-bid-build project, no 
A/E firm is required to certify. 
 

118. Inquiry:   Please confirm that the government bears the risk for any defects in the drawings and specification in 
accordance with FAR 36.2 procedures? 
 
Response:  NAVFAC Atlantic is the designer of record for this project and therefore is responsible for any 
errors or deficiencies in its designs, drawings, and specifications.   
 

119. Inquiry:    Please confirm if the statement on page 10 of 42 which reads “this will result in a design/build 
construction services” is an error and should read design-bid-build?  If this is not an error does this statement 
mean this requirement is a design build in accordance with FAR 36.3? 
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Response:    The typo was corrected via Amendment 0003. This procurement is for design-bid-build services.  
 

120. Inquiry:    If this is truly a design build in accordance with FAR 36.3 which is a two phase procedure…..how 
will the evaluation for the design phase be accomplished?  The current solicitation does not mention any 
evaluation criteria for how the government will go about doing evaluations for all offerors and determining who 
moves on to the next phase. 
 

       Response:    The typo was corrected via Amendment 0003. This procurement is for design-bid-build services.  

121. Inquiry:   Drawing - Post Office Project:  Please confirm the 400 Amp circuit breaker is available in the old 
galley substation switchboard on drawing E-601. 
 
Response:   Assume that 400A circuit breaker is available, there were two existing and available documented 
during the site visit March 2014. 
 

122. Inquiry:    P064,   I601, 09 67 23.15:  is Fuel Resistive Resinous Flooring, 3-Coat System.  The finish is 
typically specified in aircraft hangar or other industrial application.  Where is the fuel resistive resinous flooring 
being used?  This specification does not represent a "Stonhard" epoxy coating listed in the finish schedule?   
 
Response:     Specification Section 09 67 23.15 Fuel Resistive Resinous Flooring, 3-Coat System is the closest 
match to the desired flooring called out of the drawings.  Fuel resistive hangar floors are not required. 
 

123. Inquiry:     P064,   Section 09 97 13.26 is Coating of Steel Waterfront Structures.  Where does this specification 
apply on the Post Office?  Should this specification be deleted because 09 90 00 covers all paint conditions? 
 
Response:  Delete the entire specification section 09 97 13.26 Coating of Steel Waterfront Structures. 
 

124. Inquiry:    P064,   Section 09 97 13 00 40, Steel Coating has not been fully edited.  Multiple open brackets 
remain, and there is not clear indication of what coating is required.   Should this section be deleted because 09 
90 00 covers all paint conditions? 

 
Response:     Delete the entire specification section 09 97 13.00 40 Steel Coatings. 
 

125. Inquiry:   P064, 09 90 00, Paint and Coating has several open brackets and needs to be fully edited. 
  
Response:     Delete the entire specification section 09 90 00 Paints and Coatings.  Replace with attached 
specification section 09 90 00 Paints and Coatings. 
 

126. Inquiry:    Att_(G)_1344887dwg3of3 / PAGE:47 of 70, Drawing # IF 101, Furniture Plan:  Please provide us 
detailed specification and drawings for furniture. 
 
Response:    Final FFE Package will be provided after project award.  Furniture layout and furniture schedule 
are on Construction Drawings.  FFE is a planned modification and should be priced by offerors in accordance 
with the Schedule B attachment. 
 

127. Inquiry:   RFP, page 8: P-064 Post Office:  In describing the post office’s pre-engineered metal building, the 
second sentence states: "Exterior walls and roof are reinforced to meet antiterrorism requirements."  Per 
drawings provided, however, there are no notes confirming these requirements have been satisfied.   Please 
confirm if this descriptive statement is correct and, if so, that the insulated metal roofing system and concrete 
exterior wall provided with the RFP meet said antiterrorism requirements.  
 
Response:    P064: This descriptive statement is correct.  The performance requirements for the pre-engineered 
metal building are addressed in specification section 13 34 19. The exterior walls have been designed to satisfy 
the antiterrorism requirements. 
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128. Inquiry:    RFP, Sec. 1 Overview of the Source Selection,  Para. 1, Page 10, also Amendment 0003: This first 

sentence of this section reads:  “This solicitation is conducted as a negotiated procurement utilizing procedures 
in accordance with FAR 36.2.” 1. If this a design-bid-build project per both the referenced FAR and 
Amendment 0003, when will the Government provide KTR sealed/signed drawings? 
2. If the Government does not intend to seal/sign the drawings, please specify in which CLINs (e.g., 0001? 
0003?) KTR should include their costs to retain registered PEs to evaluate the P330 and P064 plan sets and 
specifications and, if acceptable, seal the engineering done by others. 
3. Must KTR seal/sign and submit the plan set(s) before the Government will allow Notice to Proceed with 
mobilization and construction? 
 
Response:     P330 & P064: The solicitation includes NAVFAC Atlantic signed drawings and specifications.  
P330 & P064: The solicitation includes NAVFAC Atlantic signed drawings and specifications.   
 

129. Inquiry:     Amendment 0003, Contract Period of Performance: KTR is allowed 495 days to complete the P-330 
ECP and 485 days to complete the P-064 US Post Office.  We recommend the Government align both projects 
to a 495-day POP to streamline schedules, milestones, concurrent demobilization, etc. 
 
Response:    Both project completion dates are calculated from the award. In case the option, P064, is awarded 
at a later time, the completion date for this project will be extended to reflect 485 calendar days completion time 
for that project. 
 

130. Inquiry:   P-330 ECP,  Sec. 03.30.30, Para. 1.6.5.1: 1. Please confirm that the QCM’s qualifications for concrete 
inspection requires a US Professional Engineer experienced with 5 similar projects.  2. Is the QCM’s required 
inspection experience to be concrete associated with the P-330 ECP project, the P-064 project, or both? 
 
Response:    P330 & P064: Refer to changes to SECTION 03 30 00 Cast-In-Place Concrete as indicated above.   
  

131. Inquiry:     By the absence of information provided on drawings or in the specifications, is KTR correct to 
assume there are:  1. No known worker health risks or waste management concerns in the existing Post Office 
derived from asbestos containing materials or lead-based paint?   2. No known petroleum or hazardous waste 
contamination at any of the existing/proposed ECP and Post Office sites? 
 
Response:    1. To the best of our knowledge no known worker health risks or waste management concerns, 
such as asbestos containing materials or lead-based paint, are present in the existing Post Office.  2. To the best 
of our knowledge no known petroleum or hazardous waste contamination exists at the ECP and Post Office 
sites. 
 

132. Inquiry:     "Sec. 01.79.24.00.20,   Pgs. 1-12,  Facility Electronic O&M Support Information (eOMSI): 1. To 
what level of detail is KTR expected to provide the data requested?   By example, if  
chilling/ventilation/motors/ducts/controls are purchased from a vendor under lump-sum terms, may KTR show 
the item as one line?  2. Conversely, does the Gov’t expect a “package” to be broken into components?   Note 
that KTR may be unable to do so given limited visibility into the vendor’s sub-component costs. 
 
Response:    P330 & P064: 1 No lump sum line items are acceptable.  2.  The level of component detail in the 
Facility Data Workbook should be the same specified in the contract documents, however no less than the level 
of detail shown in the Model and Facility Data Matrix.   
 

133. Inquiry:    "Sec. 01.79.24.00.20,  Pgs. 1-12,  Facility Electronic O&M Support Information (eOMSI): Columns 
1, 4, 5, 6, and 11 request information unknown to the KTR or not applicable to this contract.   It is requested the 
Government remove these columns from the KTR’s responsibility. 
 
Response:    P330 & P064: The Government will not remove columns 1, 4, 5, 6, and 11. Column 1 is based 
upon coordination between the Contractor and Government after award. Columns 4, 5, and 6 are provided in the 
Model and Facility Data Matrix. Column 11 will be provided by the Government after award. 
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134. Inquiry:   Sec. 01.79.24.00.20,  Pgs. 1-12,  Facility Electronic O&M Support Information (eOMSI): ol. 9 - 

Replacement Cost.   1. Is this the replacement cost of the item itself, or is it to include shipping, installation, 
etc.?    2. If shipping, from what country should KTR assume for pricing purposes?   3. How far into the future, 
and at what inflation rate, is KTR to forecast the replacement?   4. Given so many variables, it is requested the 
Gov’t delete Column 9 from the KTR’s responsibility. 
 
Response:   P330 & P064: 1. The replacement cost must include all costs to replace the asset at its installed 
location. 2. Contractor should use their best judgment for determining country of origin. 3. Present day costs are 
desired. 4. Column 9 will not be deleted. 
 

135. Inquiry:   We have had difficulty overseas accessing files via FedBizOps and are uncertain if there are four (4) 
or five (5) amendments issued through 12 April.   Please confirm the current number of amendments to the 
RFP. 
 
Response:  This is Amendment 0005 and is the final Amendment.  
 

136. Inquiry:   The government’s responses to RFIs in recent Amendments has caused us to reach back to vendors 
and suppliers, often across 7 to 10 time zones.  Recent religious holidays also slowed communications.  To 
ensure accurate pricing, may Offerors have an additional 7 days to prepare our bid? 
 
Response:  Submission date has been extended to April 27, 2015 02:00 PM EDT with issuance of Amendment 
0004.  
 

137. Inquiry:   SECTION 01 35 40.00 20, Environmental Management 1.9.1 Please define the required 
experience of the firm or individual to conduct workforce training. 
 
Response:  Refer to amended section 01 35 40.00 20 Environmental Management provided above.  
 

138. Inquiry:  SECTION 02 84 16 HANDLING OF LIGHTING BALLASTS AND LAMPS CONTAINING PCBs 
AND MERCURY, 1.4.2: Please confirm that only a US American Board of Industrial Hygiene Specialist can 
provide the required training to the workforce.  
 
Response:  P064: Yes, an US American Board of Industrial Hygiene Specialist is required. 
 

139. Inquiry:   SECTION 02 84 16 HANDLING OF LIGHTING BALLASTS AND LAMPS CONTAINING PCBs 
AND MERCURY, 1.4.2: As an alternative is a person acceptable who is capable of identifying existing 
asbestos hazards in the workplace and selecting the appropriate control strategy for asbestos exposure, who has 
the authority to take prompt corrective measures to eliminate them, as specified in 29 CFR 1926.32(f): in 
addition, for Class I and Class II work who is specially trained in a training course which meets the criteria of 
EPA's Model Accreditation Plan (40 CFR 763) for supervisor, or its equivalent and, for Class III and Class IV 
work, who is trained in a manner consistent with EPA requirements for training of local education agency  
maintenance and custodial staff as set forth at 40 CFR 763.92 (a)(2). 
 
Response:  P064: There is no asbestos work required by this specification section. 
 

140. Inquiry:   SECTION 03 30 00 Concrete Inspections, 1.6.5.1: Is the qualification experience limited to the 
quality manager for concrete inspections only, or to the whole project? Can this requirement be waived for a 
NVFAC approved CQM? 
 
Response:  P330 & P064: For specification section 03 30 00, this requirement applies to concrete work. 
However, refer to specification section 01 45 00.00 20 Quality Control, paragraph 1.5.1.2 Qualifications for QC 
Manager Requirements for the entire project. 
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141. Inquiry:   SECTION 03 30 00 Concrete Inspections, 1.6.5.1: Please provide a quantitative qualification 
requirement to meet the “extraordinary proven experience” statement? 
 
Response:  P330 & P064: Refer to changes to SECTION 03 30 00 Cast-In-Place Concrete as indicated above. 
 

142. Inquiry:   SECTION 03 30 00 Concrete Inspections,  1.4.1 : There are no state licensing requirements for 
contractors in Djibouti. Is this requirement correct and required? If so to which legal/licensing requirement? 
 
Response:  P330 & P064: There is no paragraph 1.4.1 in specification section 03 30 00. 
 

143. Inquiry:   DWG 14040354, S-101: Guard Booth specifications require the facility to be only ballistic rated but 
not blast-resistant, despite its foremost position within the ECP. Given that it would be achievable to attain a 
blast-resistant structure, please confirm whether this is desirable or not. 
 
Response:  P330: It is not required to provide blast resistance for guard booth. 
 
 

144. Inquiry:   14040359, A-101: We believe it is possible to meet the pressure original specifications for windows 
and doors of the Visitor Control Center, but acknowledge reduction from previous PPIs. Is it possible to know 
to which level have the pressure requirements been lowered?  
 
Response:  P330: There are no blast pressure requirements for the Visitor Control Center windows and doors;    
however, they must satisfy the ballistic requirements. 

 
145. Inquiry:   14040359, A-101: Kindly confirm that a technical solution comprising encased concrete with 

additional supports will be acceptable to achieve the required pressure specifications for the walls.  
 
Response:  P330: It is not clear what is meant by "additional supports"; however, the building system may be of 
steel and cast-in-place concrete construction. Please reference NAVFAC Drawing No. 1404354, S-101, detail 
A1. 
 

146. Inquiry:   In consideration of the amount of revised technical specifications and of the inability to submit 
electronically the proposals, a new extension of the proposal due date would be greatly appreciated. We 
respectfully request a time extension of one week to the deadline. 
 
Response:  Submission date has been extended to April 27, 2015 02:00 PM EDT with issuance of Amendment 
0004. 
 

147. Inquiry:   1293202dwg2of3 / E-603,  26 32 13.00 20 SINGLE OPERATION GENERATOR SETS: Do you 
request generator fuel tank for New generator showing on E-603 ? Could you provide us more detail about 
generator fuel tank if it is needed. 
  
Response:  P330: An integral skid mounted fuel tank is provided in the generator enclosure in accordance with 
specification section 26 32 13.00 20 SINGLE OPERATION GENERATOR SETS, paragraph 2.2.4.2. 
 
 

148. Inquiry:   1344887dwg3of3 / M-701, 23 09 23, BACnet DIRECT DIGITAL CONTROL SYSTEMS FOR 
HVAC: There are some Air Conditioner Control Diagrams and DDC NETWORK DIAGRAM on page M-701 
but there is no detail about DDC panel schedule and automation System Single Line Diagrams, Could you 
please provide more information about AUTOMATION SYSTEM. Do you request DDC panel, MCC panel, 
Workstation, computer ect?  
 
Response: P064: All sequence of operations and equipment on NAVFAC Drawing No. 14040308, M-701 are 
required and will be verified for performance by the Government.  All equipment and material that is required 
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to control the HVAC equipment per the sequence of operations is required.  Specific requirements of the 
equipment, material and installation are as required in the contract specifications and drawings. 
 

  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 


